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seat wac a window seat located on the right side of the bus 

and several rows from the front. (The passenger manifest for 

Transportes del Norte bus No. "A32, which departed Mexico City 

at 8:30 AM, October 2, 1963, discloses space was assigned in 

seat No. 11 for AUGUSTO AGUILAR whose final destination is 

listed es Houston. Seat No. 11 is a window seat on the right 

cide of the bus opposite the driver's side and two rows from 
the front.) 

He believed there were perhaps ten or twelve other 

passeners who boarded the bus at Mexico City; however, he 
cannot recall the identities of these fellow passengers or 

ary details which would aid in identifying them. He did not 

recall any Americans having 1-corded the bus. 

He related that he had made a bus trip on a Trans-

nertes del Norte bus from Mexico City to Mazatlan, State of 
'Sinaloa, Mexico, to attend a religious conclave in Mazatlan, 

a short time prior to the trip of October 2, 1953, and it is 

difficu)t for him to distingu.ish clearly in his mind the trip 

to MP.7atan from the trip of October 2, 1963. 

Uhen he boarded the Transportes del Norte bus at 
City or. October 2, 19'.,3, 4e final destination was 

117).r:ten, Texas, and after arriv9Kg in Houston, he continued 

to the home of Reverend BILI1;4ANDERS of Humble, Texas, on 

whose invitation he had made the trip. 	in the United 

States, he delivered several sermons in the Humble, Texas, 

area and at Houston and San Antonio, Texas. He was in the 
United States until about Ncver.:ber 20, 1963, at which time he 

returned to Mexico. He was able to fix his departure from the 

United States for return to Mexico as November 20, 1963, by 

the fact. that President KENNEEri had been assassinated on 
Noverlber 22, l9.3, and he wart in Veracruz, Mexico, when he 

first ]carved of the assassination, having left the United 

States about two days previous'y. 

He does not recall exactly where the bus stopped 

before reaching Monterrey, Nuevo Leon, Mexico, although he 

assumed the bus stopped at San Luis Potosi as one of the 

principal cities on the route. 
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He was not certain whether or not there was anyone 

seated by him on the bus nor cmIld he furnish specific informa-

tion concerning the passengers v!ho had been seated in his 

immediate vicinity. He said the bus arrived in Monterrey 

around 1:00 FM, October 2, 1:163, but considered this was only 

an estimate cn his part, remembering it was late at night. He 

could not remember any details of a stop at Monterrey, changes 

of bus units, or other data related to that phase of his travel. 

He remembered that just prior to arrival at Nuevo 
Laredo, Tamaulipas, Mexico, the bus stopped and travel and 
identification documents of the passengers were inspected by 

rexican T:_migration official::. The interior lights of the 
bus were turned cn and one or two Mexican Immigration officials 

boarded }he bus at this stoppirr point. It was his impression 

that cne cf the officials was 	stout individual, but he could 

remerter ra further descriptive data concerning this person. 

At this Immigration check point, an American youth 

left the bus with the Mexican Immigration official or officials, 

and he believed that some question had arisen concerning the 

youth's documents. He said he considered this person to be an 

Arcrioan from his general appearance. He estimated that this 

person was away from the bus for about ten minutes. He did 

not lecall this person's making any remarks after reboarding 
the bus, co.,  that other passengers left the bus at this point. 

Upon viewing a char* of the seating arrangment of 
the Traroportes del Norte bus Na. 332, which departed Mexico 

Cite,-  Cn ri:oter 2, 1963, it w,o AGUILAR's opinion that the 

American 7Duth was seated in either seat No. 8 or 9 or seat 
No. .2 or 13. AGUILAR stated he vaguely recalls this person 

was seated to his left and slichtly to his rear. 

AGUILAR vaguely recalled that the American youth 
retcarded the bus at the Immiration check point and took a 
seat in the area of the seats numbered 8, 9, 12 or 13. He 
described this person, whose facial features he cannot clearly 

remember, as follows: 

Ace: 
Height: 

Under 30 years 
7" to 5' 8" 

- 9 - 

C'05-2V-1--E'N'T-7-  I. 

• ••1 

• • •• • 	• 1 	• 	• 	• • 	• 0. 	%.< 	• 	4.. 	 • • 	• 	••• 	• • 	
• 	 .•••• 

• • ':r• 	
• $ 	.• ••• 	

`s• 	 /* 	' 	' 	• 	 -1.- 	
- ;•. 

, ••• • 	••'•,,k,  • 	..r. 

	

v
►

••••. 	
• 4 	.1,;•-■■•• 	

• •, 

	

Awe j,.% 	j, 	 • 4r.., I A v.—% 1 	 ... 	 ■••• • 	 - • 

. 	• 	 • 	......•••■•■•••■■J orir.-•■ 	14.4 	I 



-c--ft-yrrrs  	 

Weight: 	 121 to 132 pounds 
Build: 	 Slender, thin 
Hair: 	 Light brown 
Complexion: 	Light 

He expressed his general impression that the American 

was dre7sod neatly in dark-colored clothing and believed he was 

wearing a dark suit coat. He did not recall further details 

re:arid/1r-, the youth's clothing or his luggage. 

AGUILAR viewed several photographs of LEE HARVEY 

0:3:!ALD an'3 could not recognise the photographs as being 
idcAltical with any of the passengers on the bus or the American 

y:uth. lie agreed that the Arorican youth could be identical 

with 	 but affirmed that he could not be certain. 

AGUILAR viewed the phctograph of JUA J NATE° Ir CUBA 

as it appears on Mexican Governrent touriseform Fi4-5 
2 296, rind of his wife, ADA FHANCISC1j5ISLIP DE D CUBA, as 

it appears on Eexican Governront tourist form FE-5 1.13625295. 

He a2sc 1.?.s shown a photograph of PHILLIFE BITER E. 	DER 

VQP as it appears on Mexican Government tourist form F1.1-8 

No. 62472,D. AGUILAR could net recognize the photographs of 

Pr. and 7:r3. DE CUBA and VAN l' ER VCRE as being identical with 

any of tnc passengers on the Lus. 

Ho could not recall whether the bus from Monterrey 
tc L3rodr2 stepped in Nuevo Laredo but (ices rem- mter arriving t -

at the offices of the United ;:tates Immigration and Naturaliza-

tien Sorvfce and United States Customs near the International 

Eriiu in Laredo. 

He recalled that upcn arriving in Laredo, the 
cps;,e117,7n1 disembarked, obtaln:d their luggage, and walked up 
a rPmp into a large office containing a large counter, where 

the lugr=o of the passengers was then examined by United 

Sta tes cfficials whom he assuirod to be United States Customs 
acents. He recalled going into another large office where the 

passengers' travel documents were checked by United States 

authorlti. 

fle does not recall details of contact between the 
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various passengers and United States officials but believed 

that the A,erican youth who left the bus earlier during the 

Mexican Immigration check had some discussion with a United 
States Immigration official during the examination of travel 

documents; however, he could not furnish further details con-

cerning the discussion. 

AGUILAR advised he Ilas not vaccinated upon arrival in 
Laredo. Fe estimated that United States Immigraticn and Customs 

check lastrd about forty minutes and when it was completed, the 

par;sengers again boarded the bus. 

He could not remember whether he boarded another bus 

at the bus terminal in Laredo cr San Antonio, Texas. He 

stated that. either at Laredo or San Antonio he boarded an 
"Aeilcan" bus but could not recall the bus company or any 
details regarding the number or other passengers on the bus. 

Frcm San Antonio, he continued his journey to Houston. 

The following is a physical description of AGUILAR 

as obtainLO from data appearinq cn his Mexican passport and 

thro'Jgh observation: 

Name: 	 JOSE AUGUSTO AGUILAR PINTO, 
also known as AUGUSTOGUILAR. 

Date of Birth: 	June 17, 1922 
Place of Birth? 	Ciudad del Carmen, 

State of Campeche, Mexico. 
Height: 	 5' 8" to 5'  9" 

Approximately 185 pounds. 
Build: 	 Stocky 
Hair: 	 Black on the sides; 

top portion of head 
completely bald. 

Eyes: 	 Brown 
Complexion: 	Medium 
Occupation: 	Evangelical minister 
Residence: 	 Calle 2 de Abril No. 37, 

Villahermosa, State of 
Tabasco, Mexico. 

Marital Status: 	Married 
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OSIJALD'S I!JGGAGE 
• 

The following information was furnished by the fourth 

source abroad: 

On April 4, 1964, JUAN PEREZ GONZALEZ advised that 
he is the chief of the baggage department at the terminal of 

the Flecha Roja bus line, Calle Heroes Ferrocarrileros No. 45, 

Mexico, D. F. PEREZ viewed photographs of an olive-colored, 

"r-4" tag with yellow chalk cr crayon markings on one side 
which arroared to be "9/26" and possibly an initial, of 

fragments of stickers and tags thereon, and of a blue, zippered 

handta7 and affirmed that he has no recollection of those 

pleceo of luggage and did not recognize any of the markings, 

stickers cr tags as being in any way connected with the Flecha 

Roja operations. He stated, however, that he recently entered 

Mexico at Nuevo Laredo with a small, zippered handbag of canvas 

material; and when he went through Mexican Customs, the 

Inspector placed a green chalk or crayon marking on the bag to 
indicate it had teen inspected. 

PEREZ displayed the various photographs to the 

bar7T;ege handlers on duty at the terminal, and they stated 

they were unable to recall the luggage in question or make 

any expiation of the tags, stickers and inscriptions on them. 

On May 8, 1954, the manager of the Mexico City terminal 
of the iransportes del Ncrte bus line, Insurgentes Sur No. 137, 
viewed the photographs mentioned above and advised that he did 

not have any recollection with respect to the two pieces of 

luzage described above nor did he believe that any of the 

fragments of stickers and tags thereon were connected in any 

way with the Transportes del Norte baggage handling procedures. 

He erprecod the belief that the yellow chalk markings on the 

olivs-colcred bag were typical c'f the method used by Mexican 

Customs Inspectors at Nuevo Laredo to mark luggage upon 

completing examination thereof in lieu of a sticker which 

they sometimes use. 

;he manager, RICARDO MEDINA/tELTRAN, displayed the 
plIctrral:h:-. to the baggage handlrs On duty and they affirmed 

that they were unable to reccf;n:I7e either piece of luggage in 

1 ,D 
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comection with any passenger but stated unanimously that they 

recoc.nizoi the crayon or chalk markings on the olive bag as 

tyl.ical of the inspection procedure of Mexican Customs at 

/171e:o Laredo. MEDINA also displayed the photographs to several 

Transportos del Norte drivers, P.nd they were of the opinion 

that the yellow inscriptions cn the olive bag had been placed 

there by the Mexican Customs InspectoratNuevo Laredo. 

On May 4, 1964, SEBACTIAlj f<NDEZ, assistant 

desk clerk at the Hotel del Cotqercio, Calle Bernardino de 

S2haGun 	19, Mexico City, advised that he could not 

reccrni7c the photographs of either the olive or the blue-

colored 1,.!r:gage as having been in the possession of a guest at 

th;lt hotel. 

On May 8, 1934, GUILLE11140---CLIA LUNA, owner of the 

Hotel del Ccmercio, affirmed that he was unable to recognize 

the photoc;raphs of the two bar!: as having any connection with 

CS.',TAID or any other .guest at the Hotel del Comercio. 

V 
!ATILD'n GARNICA, mail at the Hotel del Comercio, 

who cla:Irod to remember OSWALT,  rio a guest at the hotel in 

rsel; No. 1&, examined photogr:Thc of the luggage on `May 8, 

19 1;1  and stated she recognized the small, blue, zippered 

handblg as the luggage which (.?2I,D had in his room at the 

hotel. She pointed out that he had been impressed by the 

fact that he had very few personal effects, had noticed he 

did some 3r,undry each day and left the wet articles hanging 

in the bathroom, and she was quire certain she had not seen 

the larger, olive-colored bag. 

en Nay 9, 1964, PF010. RODRIGUE2 LEDESI1A, night watch-

ran at the Hotel del Comercio, examined the photographs referred 

to 	nrd stated he was quite certain OSWALD had been 

carrying the blue handbag on the morning of his departure from 

the hotel. He claimed to be unable to definitely affirm that 

OS!:ALD haJ been carrying the olive bag, as he could not remember 

several of its characteristics, but he expressed the firm 

conviction that OSWALD had been carrying two pieces of luggage. 

He related that on the morning of his departure OSWALD carried 

his c:al 1w- age dctal the two flihts of stairs and waited in 

the reception area while RODRIGUEZ went in search of a taxi. 

E'. 	/"A• L 
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When RODIGUEZ returned with the taxi, he carried the luggage
 

from the reception area to the taxicab, and still has the 

strcne: 1,-,rression that he had a bag in each. hand. RODRIGUEZ
 

admitted that his recollection of the type and color of the 

lwrage is very hazy, and he does not wish to state definite
ly 

that he recognizes the photograph of either piece of luggage
 . 

in connection with OSWALD. 

INOUTRIES AT HOTEL CUBA,,,-- 

PATRINSTON and FAI,ELA/MUTIFORD, who were 

rassergers on the same bus with OSWALD from Monterrey, Nuevo
 

Lccn, rex.leo, to Mexico, D. F., September 26-27, 1963, when 

interviewed December 17, 1967, related that during the bus 

trip OSUI.L1) recommended that they stay at the Hotel Cuba in 

Me-,.ice City. They related that OSWALD claimed he had stay
ed 

at that hotel several times before and pointed out that the 

hotel wae inexpensive, mentionins, however, that he was not 

steying at the Hotel Cuba during his current trip. 

Inquiry was conducted to establish whether OSWALD 

had, In fact, stayed at the Hotel Cuba during a period follo
w-

ine-  his return to the United states from Russia in June, 196
2, 

to Noverler, 19:3. 

On December 27, 1963, a second confidential source 

who hee furnished reliable information in the past advised 

that an e::haustive search of the records of the Hotel Cuba 

located at Calle Republica de Cuba No. 69, Mexico City, for 

the period June, 1962, to October, 1963, failed to disclose 

any rer:f.tration for OSWALD under his name cr known aliases.
 

A seventh confident:1 17 source abroad advised as 

fellows! ,,. • 

On March 11, 1964, ANG 	CELORIO, manager, Hotel 

Cuba, marl: available records of the hotel, which were reche
cked 

for the period June 9, 1962, to November 22, 1963,  and no 

record cculd be located for the name of LEE HARVEY OSWALD or
 

his Imewn aliases, O. H. LEE and ALEK JAIES HIDELL. The rec
ords 

did contain a registration for one ROBERTO LEE, who register
ed 
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at the hotel on August 11, 1963, was assigned room No
. 27, 

and checler_d out of the hotel on August 21, 1953. No 
further 

identifying data regarding this LEE was contained in 
the 

records. (OSWALD had been reported as being at New O
rleans, 

Leuician7., during that period.) 

CELORIO advised he has been at the Hotel Cuba only 

since Navember 11, 1963, when he became manager, and,
 prior 

then etc, JOSE SANCHEZ, who is presently associated wi
th another 

hetcl in r:exico City, served as manager for about a f
our-month 

perice! ani Nr. RAFAEL AVALOS, also now employed at an
other 

hotel in Uexico City, had served as manager for a num
ber of 

years. 

r'n !larch 12, 1954, both RAFAEed AVALOS, manager, 

Hotel Coeereso, Calle de Allenie No. 18, Eexico, D. F
., and 

J022.8ANCNT.Z, manager, Hotel Catedral, Calle Donceles
 No. 95, 

Ecx,cc, D. F., viewed a photograph of OSWALD, and both advised
 

the:, cne2 I not recognize the photograph as being of a
nyone who 

eta:ed et the Hotel Cuba during the time they were ma
naging 

the hotel. Both were of the opinion that, if OSWALD 
had 

stayed at the Hotel Cuba durile; the time they were in
 charge 

the/e, tle:e would have recalle'l him. Neither could f
urnish 

any fur`.}:- - pertinent informalon regarding the possi
bility 

05-2eID ree have stayed at the Holel Cuba in the past. 

AVALOS related he hz1 served as manager at the 

Iictel X11, for a number of year' until July, 1952, and SANCHEZ 

stated he had managed the Hotel Cuba from June 1, 196
3, to 

yoecm'-.cr 11, 1963. SANCHEZ stated that during the period 

July, 19., 2, to June 1, 1963, Ihen he became manager, the 

ade!nfetration of the hotel hnd been disorganized and
 there 

W20 ne rerlanent manager. He ;t3ted that JESUS HERI7A
NDEZ 

SA:1CP::_Z are2 his brother, HIGT:P:.1  HERNANDEZ SANCHEZ, both of 

whom he talieved were still e:Irleyed at the Hotel Cub
a, would 

mast logfcally be the persons An the best position to
 know 

whether or not OSWALD stayed at the Hotel Cuba during
 the period 

July, 19(:2_, to Jur;e 1, 1953 

JEsun HERNANDEZ SANCHEZ, room clerk, Hotel Cuba, 

advlsnd cn March 13, 195/4, that he has been employed 
as room 

clerk at that hotel for several years. He stated tha
t during 
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the period from July, 1962, to June 1, 1963, when the hotel 

had no permanent manager, he and his br
other, HIGINIOA-ERNANDEZ 

,SANCHEZ, performed the administrative 
functions at the hotel 

and had most contact with the guests. 

HERNANDEZ viewed a photograph of OSWALD and stated 

he could not recall ever seeing him. He
 further stated he 

cou7d not recognize the photograph as be
ing of any person who 

had been at the hotel Cuba during the t
ime he has been emplued 

there. H advised that several months ago he and h
is brother, 

HIGINIO, 1171 been shown a photograph of
 OSWALD by a local 

police cifIcial, and at that time both h
e and his brother 

unolle to recognize the photograph of OS
WALD as being of 

any person who had stayed at the 
hotel during the period they 

had been =king there. He added that, f
ollowing the publicity 

arising from the assassination of presid
ent YENIELY, seeing 

QS::ALDlo photograph in the nespapers, a
nd after viewing a 

photoE-,midl of OSWALD exhibited by the p
olice official mentioned 

above, he and his brother had discussed 
the matter and had 

agreed thoy could not recall OSJALD's ev
er having stayed at 

the Hote2 Cuba. 

MISCELLANE(`US DATA RELATING TO OSWALD 

On April 4, 1964, the following informatio
n was 

provided ty the fourth puree abroad: 

D --SHANP.HAN, Fditor of the Mexico City 
daily 

En73ioh-7tnguage „:wspa 	"Ihe News,
" related that on April 

13, 19'.:40 	NAW 'IZIOS, reporter for the Mexico C
ity daily, 

"Ncvedades," had a erupted to contact 
SILVIttRAN and her 

huzbend, 	 XRAN, at ther residence in an effort t
o 

obtain 	in,,erest material for a newspaper artic
le he was 

writir7 pith respect to the OSUALD case
. NAVA had experienced 

consideratle difficulty in se;?inr: the D
URANS and was allowed 

to enter their apartment with the unders
tanding that he remain 

no lcnter than fifteen minutes. He was 
not permitted to speak 

directly to SILVIA DURAN and wan advised
 by her husband that 

she had suffered a nervous breaklewn fol
lowing her interrogation 

re::ican authorities and hal teen prohib
ited by her physician 

and DURAN, him elf, from discussing the 
OSWALD matter further. 
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EASIS FOR INQUIRY; 
INIERVIEI: OF MANUEL VICENTE 

FORRAS RIVERA 

Information from the first confidential source 

reflects that LEE HARVEY OSWALD departed from Mexi
co at Nuevo 

Laredo cn October 3, 1963, and among the names of oth
er perpens 

who departed on the same date was that of MANUEL V
ICENTE.,fORRAS 

' RIVERA. Uoxican Immigration records reflect that
 on September 

13, 19':.;3, Mexican tourist card Fli-5 No. 4377279 was iss
ued to 

MN',TEL VICENTE FORRAS RIVERA by the Mexican Embass
y at San 

Jose, GeE*1 Rica, and he-entered Mexico at the Int
ernational 

Airport F..4  Merida, Yucatan, cn September 26, 1963, statin
g 

that his destination in Mexico was Monterrey, Nuevo Leon. 

His Costa Rican FaEsport was No. 6093-63 and 

included therein a Mexican Visa No. 1147, which he
 utilized 

when ho departed from Mexico on October 3, 1963, at Nuevo
 

Laredo, T,7maulipas. Mexican Tmr;igration records r
eflect no 

mode of travel, and his final Jostination was listed as Costa 

Rica, hi_ departure frcm Mexico being handled by M
exican 

Ir.migratIn Service employee JESUS GOVEA HERRERA. 

In Fairy at San Jose, Costa Rica to 

locate M;,.NUEL VICENTE FORRAS RIVERA 

An eighth ccnfidential source abroad furnished the 

followin: information: 

HARRY KUSHITER, CenEul at the United States Embassy
, 

San Jose, Costa Rica, advised that records of the 
Embassy 

reflect that MANUEL Vr4ORRAS'VTVERA was issued
 a B-2 (visitor's) 

viEa on September 13, 1963, valid for multiple entries to the 

United States until September 13, 1967; that he was
_ in possession 

cf Costa Rican Passport No. 609:5-63; and that he w
as born on 

March 21, 1937, at San Jose, Costa Rica. FORRAS RIVERA w
as 

described as male, white, 5' 7".(tall), brown eyes, bro
wn 

hair, single, and a Costa Rican citizen. His addre
ss was listed 

as "500 yards south of El Oriente Grocery Store in
 Escazu, 

Costa Rica." He had requested the visa for the purpose of 

visiting Miami for fifteen days as a tourist and i
ndicated that 

he e:Tectc.1 to depart on September 15, 1963. 

_ 	- 
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Captain GONZALO ARAYA, Second in Command of the 

Security Agency at San Jose, Costa Rica, advised
 that PORRAS 

RIVERA is a Costa Rican citizen, the bearer of C
osta Rican 

Identifiction Docu7110. 1-254-529, and Was,bo
rn March 21, 

1937, son of VICENTE ORRAS and RUTH,.R1VERA ,  

ARAYA advised that about six months earlier PORR
AS 

RIVERA ha.d contacted him and stated that he was 
trying to go 

tc Cuba, He inquired as to whether or not ARAYA
 was interested 

in his m7;:ing the trip, as he proposed to provi
de information 

whJch he might obtain in Cuba. 

ARAYA advised that the parents of PORRAS RIVERA 
own 

a bakery in Escazu, a small t-.11 located outside
 of San Jose. 

lie conzid:red PORRAS RIVERA to to a "vagabond,"
 and he did not 

en:ourage him to make the trir to Cuba, and was 
not informed 

as to whe',;her or not he had atteropted to travel
 to Cuba. 

GER:,:INAL MONGE LAZCARES, Section Chief of the Co
sta 

Rican Irt:ration Department at San Jose, advise
d that the 

1=1:rat;lon records refle'ct that mArun V. PORRAS RIVERA left 
Cc: to Pica on September 15, 1,)53, for the Unit

ed States and 

ret'.1rnel t Costa Rica on October 11, 1953. 

Intervie4 of MANUEL VICE= FORRAS RIVERA 

On March 3, 1964, V71i:TEL VICENTE PORRAS RIVERA w
as 

intervieued and advised as follows: 

His father owns the Forras Bakery in Escazu, Cos
ta 

R1c1, and he is in charge of the bakery during t
he night shift. 

cclist situation in Cl.;!' has worried him, and
 he decided 

he would cttempt to make a trip to Cuba in order
 to ascertain 

the true conditions in Cuba al:d make this inform
ation available 

to author _ties in Costa Rica. 

In furtherance of this idea, he left San Jose in
 mid-

September, 193, for Miami, Florida. In Miami, 
he contacted an 

anti-CA= Cul:an, volunteered his services, and
 was placed in 

contact with other persons who advised him they 
did not believe 

he could be of any service to them; thereafter, 
he left Miami 
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for Meridn, Yucatan, Mexico, where he 
contacted the Cuban 

Consul on several occasions and tried 
to obtain a visa to Cuba. 

Alen the Cuban Consul in Merida denied
 his visa application, 

he traveled to Mexico City where he st
ayed at a small hotel, 

name not recalled, which is located ab
out three or four blocks 

from the Palace of Fine Arts. 

On a Saturday, the exact date of which
 he could not 

recall b1.3t believed to be September 2
8, 1963, he called at the 

Cuban Emtassy in Mexico City ,;:here
 he was stopped by a guard 

outside the building and was told that
 the Cuban Embassy was 

not open. He was instructed to return
 the following Monday 

but he dil not try to contact the Cuba
n Embassy again. 

Several days later, hc left Mexico Cit
y at about 8:00 

or 9:00 	by bus for Nuevo Laredo. He 
recalled arriving at 

Monterrey, Nuevo Leon, where he change
d buses for Nuevo Laredo. 

He entexel the United States at Laredo
, Texas, but was unable 

to lecall the exact time he arr.ved in
 the United States, 

believing, hoyever, that it wec about 
3:00 or 4:00 PM on the 

day follo.-ing his departure from Mexi
co City. On the same 

afternoon, he boarded a Greyh:u!.1 bus 
at Laredo for Dallas, 

Texas, ,Thcre he spent several d;iys be
fore traveling to New 

OrlePns, Louisiana, where he remained 
four or five days and 

from whci:: he returned to San Jose, Co
sta Rica. 

A photograph of LEE HARVEY OSWALD was 
exhibited to 

him and h was positive that ho had no
t seen OSW. ALD at any time 

while at the Cuban Embassy in Maxie° C
ity or en route to the 

United States by bus through Nuevo Lar
edo. 

IVUIRIFfr,  TO LOCATE EDWARD 

BA3TIE!: AT  GUATEMALA CITY  

The first confidential source abroad a
dvised that, 

accordips 	the files of the Pa:zican I
mmigration Service, 

EDUARD7Pf.TIEN was issued Mexican tour
ist card FM-8 No. 36257 

by thl Mexican Consulate General, Guat
emala City, Guatemala, 

cn October 1, 1963, and his name was a
mong those who departed 

from Mexico on October 3, 1963, at Nu
evo Laredo. His entry to 

Mexico occurred on October 1, 3.9';, at
 the Central Airport, 

Mexico, P. F. he was described as a m
ale, American citizen, 
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55 years of age, a priest, single, and the 
bearer of "Identi-

ficaticn Card" No. 470 as proof of citizens
hip. His departure 

was listel as by automobile and his final de
stination as 

Guatemala, Guatemala. His departure from Me
xico was handled 

by Ilexicrn immigration Service employee TEO
FILI9rStTO.ESCOBEDO. 

The eighth confidential source abroad advis
ed that 

extensive efforts were made at Guatemala Ci
ty, Guatemala, to 

locate EDWARD BASTIEN, who also is known as
 EDWARD BASTIEN, 

with negative results. Source advised that 
it was determined 

that PASTIEN, who was from El Tin, Texas, ha
d stayed at the 

Fla Motel in Guatemala City, Guatemala, on
 the nights of 

September 27 and 29, 1963, but had not been 
registered for 

the nir:ht of September 23, 19-.:3. He again 
was at the motel 

on OctoLcr 1, 1933, and advised he was departing from Gu
atemala 

City, Guatemala, by airplane, destination no
t known. 

I7:TER7IE:T OF ROBERTO GONZALO RODRIGUEZ 

ESPINOSA AT  TIBAC, COSTA RICA  

The first confidential source abroad advised
 that 

the recor:3s of the Mexican Immigration Serv
ice reflect that 

RCPERTO Gr7NZALO RODRIGUEZ ESFIN.:,SA 
was issued Mexican tourist 

card F-11- No. 133156 by the Mexican Cons
ulate at Laredo, Texas, 

cn Septer:Lor 26, 1963, and was listed as ha
ving entered Mexico 

en the sar:.7: date. His final destination at
 the time of entry 

was given as Mexico, D. F., tut the mode of 
travel was not 

indicated. He was described as a male, Cost
a Rican, 25 years 

of age, and bearer of Costa Rican Passport N
o. 6057-63, as 

proof of his nationality. Hie entry was handled by Mexican 

Immlgratin Service employee PAUlyLUEVAN /TRUJILLO. 

The source also advised that JORGE ANTONIO R
ODRIGUEZ 

Esrirost, was issued Mexican tourist card FM
-6 No. 133157 by the 

Mexican Consulate at Laredo, Texas, on Sept
ember 26, 1933. His 

destinati^n at the time of entry to Mexico w
as listed as 

Mexico, D. F., but mode of travel was not in
dicated. He was 

described as male, Costa Rican, 21 years of 
age, single, and 

bearer of Costa Rican Passport ro. 6075-63 
as proof of 

nationality. His entry to Mexico was handle
d by Mexican 

Immigration Service employee RAUL LUEVANO T
RUJILLO. 
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The eighth source abroad advised as follows: 

On April 6, 1964, ROBERTO 	 ESPINOSA, 

who resiJes near the Police Headquarters, Tibas,.„.Costa Rica, 

advised that he and his brother, JORGE ANTONIe'ODRIGUEZ 

//ESPINOSA, had entered the United States on September 17, 1
963. 

H. detemined from his passport that they had left the United 

States cn September 26, 1963, to Nuevo Laredo, Tamaulipas. He 

recalled that they had crossed the border at about 12:00 noon, 

drivinc; an automobile which they had purchased in the United 

Stites. He recalled that they had spent the night of September 

23, 	in a small town between San Antonio and Laredo, 

Texa7z, arived at Monterrey, Nuevo Leon, Mexico, at about 

LI:02, FM,  September 26, 1963, and spent that night at San Luis 

Potei, !:t ate of San Luis Potni, Mexico. 

rhotographs of OSWP1D were displayed to RODRIGUEZ 
and he stated positively that he had never seen OSWALD. He 

stated that his brother was with him during the entire day of 

Septerb.ar 23, 1933, and he was certain that his brother would 

not he al,Te to furnish inform. Lion regarding OSWALD. 

INIERVIEL7  OF OTHER PERSONS F.T SAN 
SALW.DOR. EL SALVADOR, CENTRAL 4M.ERICA 

The first confidential source abroad advised that 

the records of Mexican Immigration reflect that the following 

s1' indi71Juals entered Mexico at Nuevo Laredo on September 
1953, the date LEE HARVEY 0S4ALD entered Mexico at Nuevo 

Larodo: 

OSCAR 	 GALLART:0, who was issued Mexican 

I: r.,igratJn tourist card FM-5 No. 4363772 on September 9 

(pocsibll. 15), 1953, by the Mexican Consulate General at New 

CrlLans, louiLiana, entered N'xi.co by autobus with his 

destinati-n listed as Mexico, D. F. Mexican Immigration records 

-Ieflectcd a notation that his departure from the Republic of 

Mexico wculd be at Ciudad CuaLliitemoc or Tapachula, Chiapas. 

He we: dPcoribed as a male, Guatemalan citizen, 44 years of age, 

married, tern in Guatemala City, Guatemala, and his residence 

was listed as Pasaje Espinola 317, San Salvador, El Salvador. 

He presented Guatemalan Passport No. 20926, bearing Visa No. 

3011, issucl at the rexican Consulate in San Antonio, Texas, an 

July 12, 152,3, as proof of nationality. His entry into Mexico 

- 21 - 

CONF-T-r;ENTIAL 



N-T-1 D 	'T-rA L 

was handled by Mexican Immigration Servi
ce employee RAUL 

IUTVAN0 TRUJILLO. 	. 

ANIBAt/PLEITEZ obtained Mexican Immigration
 tourist 

caid FM-5 No. 4363773 on September 9 (possibly 19), 1963, at 

the Mexican Consulate General at New Orl
eans, Louisiana, and 

entered I:xico by autobus en route to Me
xico, D. F., with 

place of departure from the Republic of 
Mexico indicated as 

Ciudad Cuauhtemoc or Tapachula, Chiapas
. He was described as 

a rale, C:lvadoran citizen, 40 years of 
age, single, a motorman, 

born in S-n Salvador, El Salvador, and resi
dent at 4 Calle 

OriPhte N2. 132, San Salvador. He prese
nted Salvadoran Passport 

!I-- 66802, with Mexican Visa No. 709, is
sued by the Mexican 

Ccnavlato,  General, New OrleanF. Louisiana
, on September 19, 

19'3, a: proof of nationality. His entry to Mex
ico was handled 

by Maxican Immigration employee RAUL LU
EVANO TRUJILLO. 

JOSE HUMBERTO PLEITEZ was issued Mexican
 Immigration 

tourist card FM-5 No. 4363774 on Septemb
er 19, 1963, by the 

Mexican Consulate General at Ne.: Orlean
s, Louisiana, and he 

ente red F.xico by autobus en route to Mexico, D. F.,
'with his 

point of departure from the Fcpiblic of 
Mexico indicated as 

Ciudad Cu-uhtemoc or Tapachula, Chiapas. 
He was described as 

a mole, Salvadoran citizen, 35 years of age, sin
gle, mechanic, 

born San; Salvador, El Salvador. He pres
ented Salvadoran 

Passport No. 51852, with Mexican Visa No
. 708, issued by the 

Mexican Consulate General at I:ew Orleans
, Louisiana, on 

September 19, 1963, as proof of nationa
lity. His entry to 

1:13.1C0 11:25 handled by Mexican Jrmigration em
ployee RAUL LUEVANA 

THMLLE). 

JOSE BENITO'ESCOBAR presented Mexican Im
migration 

tourist card FM-8 No. 133155 issued by t
he Mexican Consulate, 

Ialado, Taxas, September 26, 19::3. Ent
ry to Mexico was by 

autobus w:i.th a final destination of Me
xico, D. F. He was 

deFcribcd as a male, Salvadoran citizen,
 51 years of age, 

married, occupation not indicated, proce
eding from Laredo, 

Texas. He presented Salvadoran Passport
 No. 67375, with 

Mexican Visa No. 4014, issued September 
 10, 1963, at the 

Mexican Embassy in El Salvador, as proo
f cf nationality. His 

entry was handled by Mexican Immigratio
n employee HECTONRAGA 
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OLfl Pj BENITEZ DE ESCOBAR was issued Mexican 
Immigration tourist card F:1-8 No. 133154 by the Mexican Con-
sulate, Laredo, Texas, September 26, 1963. She was described 

as a femqle, Salvadoran citizen, 49 years of age, married, 
occupation not indicated. She vas proceeding from Laredo, 

Texas, and presented Salvadoran Passport No. 67373, bearing 
Mexican Visa No. 4015, issued September 10, 1963, at the 

Mexisan Embassy in El Salvador, as proof of nationality. Her 

entry to Nexico was handled 1 Mexican Immigration employee 

HECTOR RIGA LOPEZ. 

REINCCOB4R was issued Mexican Immigration tourist 
card FM-; No. 133153 by the /Ixican Consulate, Laredo, Texas, 
Septemb:1 26, 1963. Her entr': vas by autobus with final 

d:stinttion listed as Mexico, D. F. She was described as a 

female, Salvadoran citizen, 19 :ears of age, single, occupation 

not indicated. She was proceeding from Laredo, Texas. She 

presented Salvadoran Passport Nf_. 67374 bearing Mexican Visa 
No. 401.o, issued September 1C, 1933, by the Mexican Embassy in 

El S91vn1Jr, as proof of nationality. Her entry to Mexico was 

handled by Mexican Immigration employee HECTOR RAGA LOPEZ. 

The eighth confidenti 1 source abroad advised as 

follovs: 

On April 10, 1964, at the El Salvador Travel Service, 

Ejlficic ialomo, San Salvador, El Salvador, OSCAR ENRIQUE 
GATLARrO advised that he is a representative of this travel 

agency end a Guatemalan citizen, although he has resided in 

an 	 for several years. He recalled making a trip to 

th Ui2it:.J States in September, 1963, to bring back three 
buses to ''an Salvador for the ",:linones Hermanos" (Quinones 

Brothers). also referred to by him as the International 

Harvester Company, as the latter is the company which Quinones 

Brothers represent in El Salvador. He advised that he had 

arranged for the services of ANnAL and JOSE HUIZERTO PLEITEZ 

to assist in driving the buses supplied by the Superior Coach 

Ccrporation of Kosciusko, Mississippi, to El Salvador. He 

was unable to recall the exact date that they had crossed the 

United States-Mexican border but stated that September 26, 1963, 
appeared to be the correct date. He advised that they drove in 

convoy, (./.:%e.sfnc the border at Nlievo Laredo, Tamaulipas, Mexico, 
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between 9,:00 and 10:00 AM. He related that they were 

prchibitd from carrying passengers and did not have any 

passengerc during the trip. He recalled that the three of 

them spent their first night in Mexico at Matehuala, San Luis 

Potosi. 

Photographs of OS=D were exhibited to him, and he 
expressed his certainty that he had never seen him. He 
advised that ANIBAL and JOSE HUMBERTO PLEITEZ were with him 

during The entire trip, and he was positive that they would 

not have seen OSWALD. 

He stated that JOSE HIT!.IBERTO PLEITEZ is employed as 

oh!9f rechanic at the Cotton Cooperative in San Salvador and 

is n:t lAated to ANIBAL PLEITES, who is employed as a truck 

driver by the Triunfo Sawmill, San Salvador. 

Cn April 10, 1954, JCEE BENITO ESCOBAR, 110  Avenida 

Sur No. 42'i (Eleventh Avenue South No. 424), San Salvador, El 

Salvadcr, advised that togethcr with his wife, OLTMPIA, and 

daughter, REINA, he had visited his daughter-in-law, OFELIA 

BARKEPA FS ESCOBAR, in Monterrey, Mexico, in September, 1953. 

uhlle he slid not recall the exact date, he related that in late 
Eeptc!r.te', 193--, they traveled from Monterrey to Laredo, Texas, 

arriving :In the latter city about 9:00 AM. They spent the 

entire day shopping in Laredo and departed from Laredo about 

8:00 PM, traveling from Nueve Iaredo, Tamaulipas, to Monterrey 

on a bus of the Transportes del Norte line, arriving in 

Mcnterrey q.t about 12:00 midnight. 

fhotographs of OSWAT_D were displayed to ESCOBAR 

and to his wife, oLinpIA, and both stated they felt quite 

certaln they had not seen the individual pictured therein. 

These ptographs also were disrlayed to OFELIA BARRERA DE 

ESCC,BAR, 	formerly resided in Monterrey and who made the 

trir described above with the ESCOBARS, She stated that she 

was unablf•: to recognize the person in the photographs as anyone 

she 11',.d ever seen. The persons interviewed stated that NELSON 

ULISES ESCOBAR, who is attending the agricultural school at 

Saltillo.Coahuila, Mexico, made the trip with them. 
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UN; I 11) 	Gu "icSMENT 

«'»u» andum 
Y.JFIECTOR, FBI (105-8255) 

1;111' ?..111ATI  MEXICO CITY (1n5-5702) 

Lr:,.] HARVEY OSWALD, akn. 
- R - CUBA 

( F )  

DATE 5/11/511 

• / 	ENCLOS  LIFT  S 

elf herewith are L2 copies of a letterhead 

tt^.tn ran 711,,  ‘1-,.ted and captioned '7. above. 

REFET1i.7.1■ 0:7:; : 

r14TIon421,1u-.) .. all leads and inquiries which appear in the 

Piretcr Cipd 4/24/64. Fre210ent 1 s Commission General efinsel J. LEE RAN KIN to the 

Ill'ISITV.11 ri: : 

Eireau cable i:68 date _1  V'30fiLt, and letter from the 

"1j:11 the submission c.r.' f.110 enclosed letterhead 1 - - - - 	1 
_ _ 
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con:ernilr ..Y 7 '1-T•T"). The latter irwestigation is being handled 
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..) . 

M.?. enclosed letterhc r.-  C. memorandum also records the 
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MC 105-3702 

SOURCES: 
 

The confidential source
 abroad referred to in 

the • 

enclosed letterhead mem
orandum which provided 

the information 

on which the investigat
ion rep6rtcd therein wa

s predicated is 

L' gat, Mexico City, fil
e 105-3702. 

second confidential source ab
road.referred to 

The third confidential 
source abroad isitrirr."7

 

The fourth confidential s
ource abroad 

The fifth confidential 
source abroad is 

The sixth confidential 
source abroad is 

r 

7 	̂evcnth conflderrtiP.1 source abroad is 

The eighth confidential
 source abroad 

CLASSIFICATION:  

The enclosed letterMad 
memorandum has been cla

ssi-

"C0NF7DENTIAL" in order
 to protect the Bureau'

s operations 

abr,-aJ 	investiga
tive activi'i.es by Bure

au personnel in 

connect:I.nn with this ca
se. 

LEAD:   

MEXICO CITY 

At Mexico, D. F. 

Will continue to handle
 all leads developing i

n 

6ohneetion with this ca
se and will complete an

d report the 

.results of inquiries a
t various Mexico City m

useums. 
• • 

• 
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15 MAY 13 1964 

4.3 (1,10.•. 4-17-63) 
Telma. 
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URGENT 5-11-64 

TO DIRECTOR 

FROM LEGAT MEXICO CITY NO. 614 

BUFILE 105-82555. LEE HARVEY OSWALD IS-R-CUBA. FOLLOWING 

IS DAILY SUMMARY. 

RE MISCELLANEOUS ALLEGATIONS. LHM REPORTING INQUIRES 

REQUESTED BY PRESIDENT'S COMMISSION EXCEPT MUSEUM COVERAGE, 

AND RECENT BUREAU LEADS WILL BE SUBMITTED TOMORROW'S POUCH. 

MUSEUM INQUIRIES IN PROGRESS. 

RE TRANSPORTES DEL NORTE PASSENGERS. CONTINUED INVESTIGATIO4 

HAS FAILED TO IDENTIFY CHAIN-SMOKING MEXICAN FROM TEXAS DESCRIBE) 

BY PASSENGERS INTERVIEWED BUT FROM ANALYSIS OF AVAILABLE INFORM-

ATION CONCERNING PASSENGERS IT IS SUGGESTED THIS INDIVIDUAL t„),  

MUST BE HUSBAND OF HILDA QUEZADA. INQUIRIES CONTINUING. 

ADDITIONAL SUMMARY TOMORROW UACB. 

7 9 MAY 1319644 
If the intelligence contained in the above message is to he disseminated outside the Bureau, it is suggested that it be suitably 

paraphrased in order to protect the Bureau's cryptutou,...J.i. s),.tvins 

fn. 
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TO: 	DIRECTOR, FBI (105-82555) 

FROM: 	LEGAT, MEXICO CITY (105-37
02) (P) 

Clazzi.:c 
Zrcrpt. fro=  ,DaleC2S,  ate Deciazzi:Cat czor 	2: 

icatIoz Indeflite 

SUBJECT: LEE -R CUB HARVEY OSWALD, aka 
IS 	A 

ReBucab 4/50/64. 

Bureau 
(1 - Liaison 

i (2 - Dallas, 
3.- Mexico City 

(1 - w' icc-1 
(1 

);117,:e 

C. SHALL 

Sectiorq 
100-10401) 

0-VgY 

SOT_,• 	e TS 
	M

i
er 	 

ION 

• F 

5/12/614 

Transmit the following in (Type in plain tent or eciel) 

(Priority or Method of Mailing; AIRTEL 

Mexico City Office file on CHARLES SMALL (Bufile 
100-12632) reflects that he has the status of "inmigrado" 
(permanent immigrant) in Me;:ico and that he departed Mexico 
City for New York on 9/14/63 rr'tvrning approximately 
9/29/63. Through informant 	

arrangements have been 

made to review SMALL's file 	u-,,c:rnacion to confirm, his 
immigration status and determine whether or not that file 
contains any record of his September travel. LI 

on 5/4/64, 	
Mexico 

City, advised that Mc:;;ico 	
recorus reflect that 

CHARLES SMOLIKOFF and son, DENVIS, departed from Mexico City 
for New York City on Eastern Airline Flight 	

9/14/63. (J 

He returned to Mexico City from New York City on Eastern 
Airline Flight 301, 9/29/53, accompanied by his wife, BERTHE 
SMOLIKOFF (Lucile 100-421747), and son, DENNIS. BERTHE 

U 
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SMOLIKOFF had preceded her husband in traveling to Ne
w York, 

going by Eastern Airlines Flight 
7
--//00 on 9/9/63, accompanied 

by son, AE1:30TT (Bufile 100-441277). Checks of airline travel 
relating to S:::ALL for the period from 9/29-10/3/64 ar

c not 

being made since information received from CIA, Mexico, "not L/7  

to be disseminated outside the Bureau," as recorded i
n the 

report of SA NATHAN L. FERRIS dated 11/29/63, entitle
d "CHARLES 

N. SM3LIKOFF, aka, SIi - C," indicated that SMOLIKOFF remained 

in Mexico City following his arrival on 9/29/63 and c
laimed 

to be ill. 

In regard to Bureau request for opinion of this 

office concernin: the best manner for interviewing SALL in 
case the Commission requests his interview, the follo

wing is 

submitted: 

ii 

It is suggested that such an .interview should not, , 

be requested from the Mexican authorities because of 
the 

difficulties previously cited of exercising control o
f 

Nexican officials. 

If such interview proves necessary, it should be 

handled by an American official, preferably some official of 
the Embassy who is operational abroad and would be ab

le to 

testify or give a deposition if needed, as is customar
ily done 

when official interviews are required abroad in Burea
u cases. 

It is believed that this could be best arranged by re
quest by 

the Bureau to the State Department in the customary m
anner. 

The Department of State would then issue instructions
 to the 

Embassy, which would select the proper official to ha
ndle the 

interview, and this office could cooperate closely wi
th him. 

It is suggested also that an Agent of this office 

sit in with the E:ALansy official during the interview
 to 

insure that the Bureau's interests arc protected and p
ertin- Li 

ent points covered. It is believed that SNOLIKOFF, a
s an 

American citizen, would respond to a request from the
 Embassy 

to appear at the Embassy for an interview. 
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URGENT 5-12-614. • 

DIRECTOR 

. 	 • 
FRO-LEGAT MEXICO CITY NO. 619 

BUFILE 105-82555. (LEE 	HARVEY19SWALCI., IS-R-CUBA. FOL OWING I 

DAILY SUMMARY. RE  ALLEGATIONS CONCERNING ARN
OLD LOUIS KESSLER 

AND BUAIRTEL TO DETROIT MAY 5 LAST. RECORDS CASA D
E LOS AMIGOS, 

MEXICO CITY REFLECT ARNOLD KESSLER REGISTERED
 AS GUEST THEREIN 

FROM OCTOBER 25 TO NOVEMBER 11 LAST AND FOR S
HORT PERIODS 

THEREAFTER ON THREE OCCASIONS UNTIL FEBRUARY 
29. ON BASIS OF 

LEGAT, BRAZIL'S INTERVIEW OF KESSLER IT APPEA
RS LATTER, 

ROBERT KAFFKE AND HOMOBONO ALCARAZ ARETALKING
 AROUND ORIGINAL ri  

ALLEGATION MADE BY BARRIE MILLMAN AND SUBSEQU
ENTLY DENIED BY () 

RE COMMISSION REQUEST CONCERNING MUSEUMS. IN
FORMANT MEX-

ALCARAZ. LHM BEING SUBMITTED. 

COMPLETED THOROUGH CHECK OF REGISTRATION RECO
RDS AND INTERVIEWS 

OF PERSONNEL AT PRINCIPAL MUSEUMS WITHOUT DEV
ELOPING ANY 

INFORMATION RE SUBJECT. LHM BEING SUBMITTED.
 ADDITIONAL 

SUMMARY TOMORROW. 

_J 

34 

CLARK D. ANDERSON 

RECEIVED: 11:03 PM JGE 
REC-42 

M(-- V2 (7( 

2 MAY 14 1954 
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BUFILE 105-82555. LEE HARVE OSWALD, IS-R-CUBA.
 FOLLOWING 

IS DAILY SUMMARY. RE  TRANSPORTES DEL NORTE BUS PASS
ENGERS. 

JOSE RODRIGUEZ PERALES, MONTERREY, NUEVO LEON AD
VISED INFOR-

MANT HIS BROTHER, EULALIO RODRIGUEZ PERALES, IS E
MPLOYED 

BY JONES OFFICE SUPPLY, 1065 BROADWAY, MCALLEN TE
XAS AND 

RESIDES UNKNOWN ADDRESS AT ALAMO, TEXAS WHERE RE
CEIVES 

THROUGH P.O. BOX 175 AND MIGHT HAVE BEEN PASSENGE
R ON 

TRANSPORTES BUS. SUGGEST SAN ANTONIO LOCATE AND 
INTERVIEW. 

ADDITIONAL SUMMARY TOMORROW. 

RECEIVED: 11:01 PM EFH 

• 
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5/13/G4 
CODE 

C LE GRA 11 	 URGEIT 1 - Stokes 11. 

TO LEGAT MEXICO CITY (105-3702) 
REC- 26 

FROM DIRECTOR FBI (105-82555) -".  
) 

LEE HARVEY OSWALD, IS R - CUBA. 

REURLET AND urransID MEMORANDUM DATED MAY FIVE LAST DEALING 

WITH spronTs TO OBTAIN PASSENGER LIST OF RED ARROW BUS LINE. 

BUREAU IS NOT DISSEMINATING RE LETTERHEAD, NOTE FOLLOWING IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH. ALIAS OF OSTALD APPEARING LAST FULL PARAGRAPH, 

PAGE ONE, SHOULD BE QUOTE HIDELL.UNQUOTE, WORD QUOTE AUTOBUS 

UNQUOTE NEXT TO LAST LINE PAGE ONE SHOULD BE PLURAL. STATEMENT 

ATTRIBUTED TO CONFIDENTIAL SOURCE 

PAGES ONE AND TWO RE NEGATIVE CHECK OF RECORDS TRANSPORTZS FRONTERA 

IS IN ERROR AS NAME QUOTE OSWLD UNQUOTE WAS MANIFESTED ON OCTOBER 

TWO LAST TRIP OF FRONTERA LINE FROM MEXICO CITY TO NUEVO LAREDO. 

IF 	 HAS KNOWLEDGE OF CHECKS MADE OF PASSOGER MANI- 

FESTS OF RED ARROW Los, IT IS LIKELY THAT HZ KNOWS WHO RADE BUCK 

CHECKS AND WHO OBTAINED THE MANIFEST, QUESTION HIM IN THIS REGARD. 

PAGE FIVE INDICATES THAT GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS WHO OBTAINED PASSENGER 

MANIFEST OF RED ARROW LINE, gp,ramousLy PADS CHECK AT TRANSPORTES 
• 

FRONTEEA LINE. YOUR APRIL EIGHT LAST LETTERHEAD .IDENTIFIES POLICE 

NOM 

IMP 

'7'...7" -1- = DALLAS (100-10461) (ENCLOSURES - 6) 
r 

(SEE NOTA,FOR SAC,. DL, RA,CE 3) 

// e 
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CrtrIT%3RAU TO mmaco CITY 
PF: LEE HARVE7 OSWALD 
115-C2335 

OFFICIAL WHO CONDUCTED INQUIRY AT FRONTERA LINE TO BE LIEUTENANT 

ARTURO BOSCH OF PRESIDENTIAL STAFF. INTERVIEW BOSCH. 

RE LETTERHEAD DOES NOT CLEARLY ESTABLISH EXACTLY WHAT 

PASSLNGEL LISTS WERE PREPARED FOR BUS TRIP IN QUESTION. WHILE 

ONE SUCH LIST IS PREPARED AT POINT OF ORIGIN, NUEVO LAREDO, 

ORIGINAL OF WHICH FILED MEXICO CITY, LETTERHEAD MAKES REFERENCE 

TO ADDITIONAL RECORDS OF PASSENGERS WHO BOARD BUS OR PURCHASE 

TICKETS AT MONTERREY AND MINAS HIDALGO. CLARIFY THIS. 

STATEMENT OF DRIVER MORALES ON PAGE THREE THAT HE WAS CERTAIN 

THERE WERE EIGHTEEN PASSENGERS ON TRIP FROM NUEVO LAREDO TO 

MEXICO BECAUSE OF NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS LISTED ON BAGGAGE LIST 

IS NOT CONSISTETT WITH MORALES' STATEMENT THAT BAGGAGE LIST DOES 

NOT INCLUDE HAMS OP ALL THE PASSENGERS. FURTHER MORALES' COMMENTS 

IN LAST FULL PARAGRAPH, PAGE THREE, RE LINES DRAWN ON BAGGAGE.LIST 

IS IN ERROR AS BAGGAGE LIST PERTAINS TO LUGGAGE CHECKED ON BUS 

RLTHEE THAN TO PASSENGERS. NOTE THAT NAME OF BOWEN WHO TRAVELED 

ALONE APPEARS ON BAGGAGE LIST WITH LINE DRAWN BLNEATHIIS:NAME. 

THIS LINE INDICATED ADDITIONAL LUGGAGE OF BOWED RATHER THAN THAT 

HZ WAS TRAVELING IN A PARTY OF TWO. ENDEAVOR TO LOCATE ALL 

PASSENGER LISTS THROUGH LEADS SUGGESTED HEREIN AND, THEREAFTER, 

REWRITE RE LETTERHIAD CLEARLY AND CONCISELY SETTING FORTH 

DESCRIPTION OF PASSMNGER LIST OR LISTS FOR TRIP IN QUESTION. 

• 2 • 
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CArlFGE111 TO MtYICO CITY 
FL: LEE HARVEY MWAIII 
1f15-U2555 

REURAIRTEL MAY SEVEN LAST CONCERNING DOSSIER OF AMBASSADOR 

MANN. FURNISH TO BUREAU COPIES OF ITEMS DESIGNATED ONE AND THREE 

IN REAIRTEL. 

REURCAD MAY SEVEN LAST, NUMBER SIX ZERO ONE. BUREAU DOES 

NOT DESIRE TO INQUIRE OF COMMISSION AS TO NATURE OF COMMISSION 

IMPRE.SENTATIVES' ORAL REQUEST OF YOU. YOUR APRIL TWENTY-EIGHT 

LAST LETTERHEAD CONCERNING IDENTITIES OF AGMS WHO CONDUCTED 

INVESTIGATION ISIECEICO HAS BEEN FURNISHED TO COMMISSION ON BASIS 

YOUR STATEMENT THAT COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVES WERE INTERESTED 

ONLY IN IDENTITIES OF AGENTS WHO CONDUCTED INQUIRY OUTLINED IN 

YOUR MAY SEVEN LAST CAB. REURCAB MAY NINE* LAST, NUMBER SIX ZERO 

NIGHT. YOU MAY DISCONTINUE DAILY SWAM, HOWEVER, KEEP BUREAU--  

CURRENTLY INFORMED OF ALL PERTINENT DEVELOPTS. HANDLE FORE.
-.. 

GOING REQUESTS IMMEDIATELY. DALLAS BEING ADVISED BY MAIL.-  

NOTE TO SAC, DALLAS: 

Inclosed are two copies of re Legat airtel 5/7/64, 

and two copies re Les'at letter and letterhead dated 5/5/64. 
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(Priority or Method of Mailing) 

TO: DIRECTOR, FBI (105-82555) 

FROM: SAC, EL PASO ( 05-1264) (P) 

SUBJECT: LEE HARVEY OSWALD, Ak
a. 

IS - R - CUBA 

00: DALLAS 

Re Legat, Mexico letter to the 
Director dated 

4/23/64. 

Enclosed for the Bureau are two
 additional copies 

of this communication to be for
warded to Legat, Mexico. 

On May 4, 1964, S of I REGINALD SANDERS, Mana
ger, 

Juarez Mercantile Company, Call
e Abraham Gonzalez, Juarez, 

Chihuahua, Mexico, advised that
 GABRIEL CONTRERAS is a 

retired railroad employee, who 
is employed as a railroad 

car expediter by the Fabrica de
 Aceite de Algodon in Juarez. 

He said CONTRERAS resides in Ca
margo, Chihuahua, Mexico, 

some 400 miles south of Juarez,
 where he also has a small 

electrical business. He said CO
NTRERAS is not in Juarez at 

the present time and comes to J
uarez only on an infrequent 

basis. CONTRERAS spends considerable time in
 Mexico City, 

where he usually stays at the H
otel del Comercio. CONTRERAS 

spends most of his time in Cama
rgo, where he is well knowd. 

His telephone number in Camargo
 is 391. 

Office in 
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2 - Dallas (100-10461) 	
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1 - El Paso 	
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In Reply. Please Re.- 6, 
File IVe. Washington, D. C. 

May 4, 1964 

At 
OF JUSTICE 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

UNITED STA 

LEE HARVEY OSWALD 	 lf ,, 

A confidential source abroad has advised as follows: 

Arnold Lou Kessler, whose permanent residence is 18266 

Finehurst,-Detroit 21,- Michigan, on April 30, 1964, in Sao 
Paulo, 

Brazil, advised that he at no time, at any place, had been 
in contact 

with Lee Harvey Oswald and advised he had made no statement
 to anyone 

that he had-had such a contact in Mexico, D. F. Kessler st
ated that 

hermay hale made the remark to someone that a friend of his
, Homobono 

lcarae7Aragon, had once remarked that he had met Oswald in 
Milico City. 

Kessler advised that approximately the middle of February, 
1964, Aragon 

had told him, Kessler, that he had been contacted by repres
entatives of 

the U. S. Embassy in Mexico City concerning his contact wit
h Oswald 

and that he had told the Embassy representatives that he ha
d, on one 

occasion, been introduced to Oswald. Kessler stated he had
 no details 

of the meeting between Aragon and Oswald but that his recol
lection is 

that Aragon had stated he had been introduced to Oswald som
etime in 

the fall of 1963 and that it is his, Kessler's, recollectio
n that Aragon 

had stated that Oswald and the person who introduced them h
ad had coffee 

with him at that time at an unidentified place in Mexico C
ity. Kessler 

stated he could recall no other details of Aragon's stateme
nts•and that 

he has no other details concerning such a meeting between A
ragon and 

Oswald. Kessler noted that he does not know whether Aragon
 actually 

met Oswald or not. He advised that Aragon had been worried
 in mid-

February, 1964, during the reported conversation, as he was
 at that 

time attempting to obtain a temporary U. S. visa and feared
 that he 

would not obtain the visa as a result of his reported conta
ct with 

Oswald. 

Kessler stated he had gone to Detroit from California ap-

proximately September 17, 1963, and that he was in Detroit,
 Michigan, 

on September 23, 1963, his birthday._ He stated he depart
ed Detroit 

during the first week of Cctober, 19'J3, spent one day in Chicago,
 two 

days in St. Louis, an appro:Amately one week in Guanajuato,
 State of 

Guanajuato, Me;:ico, after which he had taken a bus to Mexico City. He 

advised that upon arriving in Mexico City he had chec
::ec into the Casa 

de Los Ami.,:os and that as near as he ,:ould re
collect this was appro;:i-

mately the middle of Cctober, 1963. 

This document contains neither 
recommendations nor conilitlionc of 
the FBI. It is the prop.rty of 
the FBI and 	 'or strzncy; 

it ar! 	 t 
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Kessler stat y 	 .:ed for the "Mexico City Times," • 
a Mexico City newspape 	 eMber,'1963, to the first part of 

February, 1964, at which- M ehad gone to Veracruz, Mexico, for 

approximately one week during Carnival. He stated he r
eturned to 

Mexico City about the middle of February, 1964, and it 
was at this 

time that Aragon had made the statements concerning his
 havin3 met 

Oswald. Kessler stated he had made a hitchhiking and c
ommercial travel 

- ,trip through Central America, arriving in Sao Paulo, 
Brazil, approxi-

:-..mately Mar;h 17, 1964. He further advised that sinc
e he has been . 

:instructed to report for his Selective Service physica
l examination 

in Detroit on May 22, 1964, he plans to depart Sao Paul
o on May 5, 1964, 

for Buenos Aires, Argentina, where he will spend approx
imately one 

week, after which he will return to Detroit by air via 
Lima, Peru. 

Kessler reiterated that he has at no time met Lee Harve
y 

Oswald and knows of no other person who met Oswald, oth
er than possibly. 

Aragon. He stated he could furnish no information as t
o other persons 

who might have information concerning a possible contac
t between Aragon 

and Oswald. 
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' 	 IS - n 
-; rt., 
... 

	

! 	xdCLOSURES: 
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r  Memorandum 
Director, FBI (105-82555) 

6.;:/ 
Inclosed to the Bureau are 39 copies of a letterhead 

memorandum dated and captioned as above. 

REFERENCES:  

Legat, Rio de Janeiro (62-42) (RUC) 

L 

DATE: 	5/4/64 

CC TO: . . . 
REQ. RECT .1!) — 

JUL 3 1964 

4 

it? WV MAMA. 0001111 Ma 
...MAY =ATM 

OSA GOA Acs. 

• ...I 	UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 

ADDUNISTRATIVE:  

r 

• 

CLASSIFICATION: 

f. • 

Bureau cable to 111.0 4/28/64 and Ric cable to Bureau 5/11)4. 
(:7  

- -43 

Interview of ARNOLD LOUIS KESSLER was conducted at Sao Paulo 

Brazil, 4/30/64 by Lcgal Attache EDWARD S
. SANDERS. 

Encloses: letterhead memorandum is classif
ieu 'Conf 

in order to prctect thc JAIreauss operatio
ns. 	 0"‘ 

• 

COPIES: 4 Of 

I ' 	
Two copies are designated for Dallas as t

he domestic office 

*. 

 

0 - 	of origin. Two copies are designa
ted for the San Francisco Office in 

the event further inquiries by that offic
e are desired in connection with 

an interview of BARRIE MILLMAN from whom a prior allegation had been 

obtained that ARAGON had met subject OSWALD in Mexico City. Two copies are 

- 	designated fo
r the Mexico City Office in the event a r

einterview of 

ARAGON is deemed feasible by the Bureau. 
Two copies are designated for 

the Detroit Office in view of that being 
KESSLER's legal address Lnd point 

of his Selective Service Board. RFC-42 
4]. - Bureau (Enos. 39) 

... 	2 - Dallas 100-10461 - Encs. 2) 1
.5.11, 	t: 

‘,‘) 

	

	2 - San Francisco 39-..)3 - Encs. 2Y;) 
r, : q 7.__  

2 - Mexico City 10i1-3702 - Encs. 2r4, 

1 - Liaison Section - Enc. 1) 	,. 
	---. 2 - Detroit 100-3196:5 - Encs. 2) 	... 

1 - Rio de Janeiro 	
. 
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Rio 62-42 

STATUS:  

5/4/64 

The case is ccnsidred RUC at Rio de Janeiro. 
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5/14/64 

COD 
	 - 

CABLEGRAM 	
URGENT 

1 - J. C. Stokes 

It 
er731 

TO LEGAT, MEXICO CITY (105-3702) 

FROM DIRECTOR, FBI (105-82555) 

LEE HARVEY 'OSWALD, IS - R • CUBA. 

REURCAB KAY NINE LAST, wirumn SIX ZERO EIGHT, AND BUCAB 

MAY THIRTEEN LAST. 

IN ABSENCE OF SPECIFICS CONCERNING EXTENT OF INVESTIGATI
ON 

MEXICO RE PASSENGERS ON DEL NOP.TE BUS FROM MEXICO CITY 
TO LAREDO 

OCTOBER TWO - THREE,ONE NINE SIX THREE AND AS TO EXTENT
 OF INQUIRY 

WHICH MAY BE NECESSARY TO LOCATE PASSENGERS ON RED ARRO
W BUS FROM 

CITY 
NUEVO LAREEO TO MEXICO/SEPTEMBER TWENTY-SIX - TWENTY-SE

VEN, ONE NINE 

SIX THREE IN THE EVENT RANIFEST FOR THAT BUS IS LOCATED
,BUREAU IS 

UNABLE TO ACCURATELY ASSESS PERSONNEL NEEDS OF YOUR orrIcE IN 

CONNECTION wun THIS INVESTIGATION. NOTE THAT COMMISSION HAS 

INDICATED DESIRE TO mArz yrs RrPou IN JUNE AND, THEREFORE
, TAM 

Lil-ILI 	,REc- -66 	T. , 	'' 	, 
THAT ALL REMAINING INQUIRY ama BE COUPLETED EARLIEST 

POSS . t ,.. z. 

min PEr.pING WORM THIS CASE INCLUDING ADS TO LOCATE PASSEN
GERS 

1177.74 

ON BUSES -  IN QUESTION AND THEREAFTER ASSESS 'YOUR NEEDS AND SUBMI
T 

YOUR...IXOCAENDATION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT SPECIAL SQUAD WU-ZING
 Trim 

C E BE DISCONTINUED. SUCAI3. ONE COPY TO DALLAS EY MAIL. 

S( -01..7.10:71.) 	‘=44-- 	 ‘, 
VIA cp,,2LEGrt-'-, r , 	. 	•i, 

.CS:H 	 1 ! 	ti 	I  

(5)'7 	I.:'■ 'i i 4 1Z-J'j'i 	,. / 
te-  --y 

1 	or 	 1.34i4iRoute ; 
1 y 

aSEE NOTE PAGE TWO. 
• tl • . 	. ' 	- 	.•! 	;t.; 

through for review) 
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Cablegram to Legat, Mexico City 

Re: Lee Harvey Oswald 
105-82555 

BUREAU NOTE: 

Legat has three SA's on special assignment handl
ing 

phases of Oswald case. It was originally contem
plated they would 

complete investigation by first of May. However
, additional 

investigation requested by Commission and any le
ads which may 

develop if Legat finds manifest of Red Arrow Bus
 may necessitate 

holding men on special assignment in Mexico City
 for additional 

period. We cannot assess Legat's needs here. 

ri-Yr,Tril 	
. ) -2:1 ___  

\l'61ZU cL______ 
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\URGENT 5-15-64 

'O DIRECTOR 

FROM LEGAT MEXICO CITY NO. 631 

BUFILE 105-82555. LEE HARVEY OSWALD, IS—R—CUBA
. REBUCAB NUMBER 

92 MAY 14 LAST. 

IT IS ANTICIPATED SUMMA7 REPORT AND LHMS C
OVERING OUTSTANDING 

COMMISSION AHD BUREAU REQUESTS WILL BE SUB
MITTED NOT LATER THAN 

MAY 21 NEXT. 

WITH RESPECT TO TRANSPORTES DEL NORTE PASS
ENGERS, OF 21 

PASSENGERS ORIGINATING MEXICO CITY AND GUA
DALAJARA FOR WHOM NAMES 

AVAILABLE, 10 PASSENGERS HAVE BEEN IDENTIF
IED AND OR INTERVIEWED. 

REMAINING PASSENGERS HAVE NOT BEEN IDENTIF
IED OR LOCATED ALTHOUGH 

INVESTIGATION BEING VIGOROUSLY PURSUED AT 
GUADALAJARA, MONTERREY 

AND MEXICO CITY THIS CONNECTION. s  AT GUADALAJARA SOME 50 PERSONS 

WITH NAMES SIMILAR TO BUS PASSENGERS HAVE 
BEEN LOCATED AND 

INTERVIEWED BY INFORMANTS WITH NEGATIVE RE
SULTS. 

CONCERNING HOTEL DEL COMERCIO GUESTS OF PO
TENTIAL OF 

APPROXIMATELY 60 GUESTS, 14 PERSONS HAVE B
EEN LOCATED AND INTER-

VIEWED WITH NEGATIVE RESULTS. EXTENSIVE I
NVESTIGATION BEING 

CONDUCTED BY INVESTIGATIVE INFORMANTS IN A
LL AREAS OF MEXICO FROM 

WHERE GUESTS REGISTERED IN EFFORT TO IDENT
IFY AND INTERVIEW. 

WHILE INVESTIGATION CONTINUING TO LOCATE R
ED ARROW PASSENGER 

LISTS FOR SEPTEMBER 26 LAST, INVESTIGATORS
 OF PRESIDENTIAL STAFF 

HAVE CONTINUOUSLY AVOIDED EFFORTS BY LEGAT
 PERSONNEL AND AGENT 

A 
— / 

• ■ 	 1, 	 • 	ger 

i ■-• 	 44/ 
• Lf1  
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AIRGRAM ix CABLEGRAM ED RADIO 	TELETYPE T. 

PAGE TWO FROM MEXICO CITY NO. 631 

OF GOBERNACION TO INTERVIEW THEM CONCERNING BUS LIST, AND I
T 

APPEARS THEY MAY HAVE DESTROYED LIST ON PREMISE OSWALD'S 

NAME DID NOT APPEAR THEREON AND ARE AVOIDING SHOWDOWN. IT 
IS NOT 

BELIEVED THIS MATTER CAN BE PRESSED FURTHER THAN ONE MORE 

ATTEMPT TO INTERVIEW ARTURO BOSCH THROUGH HIS SUPERIOR WHO 
HAS 

BEEN CONTACTED SEVERAL TIMES IN PAST AND HAS STATED HE WOUL
D HAVE 

TO REFER MATTER TO PRIVATE SECRETARY OF PRESIDENT LOPEZ MAT
EOS. 

SHOULD LIST BE LOCATED INVESTIGATION OF THAT AND OTHER 

PHASES MENTIONED ABOVE OF NECESSITY WOULD BE A HANDLED BY I
NVESTI- 

GATIVE INFORMANTS AND LIMITED REPORTING IN CONNECTION THERE
WITH 

ASSUMED BY AGENTS HANDLING INFORMANTS. 

WITH SUBMISSION OF DISSEMINABLE MATERIAL NEXT WEEK ALL 

ACTIVE INVESTIGATION AND VOLUME REPORTING BY AGENTS WILL HA
VE BEEN 

COMPLETED AND IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT AT THAT TIME UNLESS NE
W 

(ONE

ARISE TwO AGENTS OF SPECIAL SQUAD BE RELEASED AND 

(ONE AGENT REMAIN IN MEXICO CITY FOR ADDITIONAL PERIOD TO H
ANDLE 

POSSIBLE BUREAU INQUIRIES CONCERNING SUMMARY AND OTHER MATE
RIAL 

1 
AND TO ASSIST IN COORDINATING AND REPORTING REMAINING INVES

TIGATIVE 
i 
( PHASES UNTIL VOLUME DIMINISHES FURTHER. 

I 
	 CLARK D. ANDERSON 

RECEIVED: 5-16-64 3:02 AM EFH 

:.:1. 	..-'..t 
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; 	 FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

	

In 	riewe Refer to 
	 WASHINGTON 25, D. G. 

	

Fac 	 ,_tONT-111,ENTIAL- 	May 18, 1964 

LEE HARVEY OSWALD 

BASIS FOR INQUIRY 

The inquiries recorded hereinunder were conducted 

on the basis of information received from a confidential source 

abroad to the effect that LEE HARVEY OSWALD was alleged to 

have visited "some museums" during the time he was in Mexico 

City from September 27 to October 2, 1963. 

INQUIRIES AT PRINCIPAL AND nosT ACCESSIBLE NUSEUS  

The information which follows was provided by a 

confidential source, who has furnished reliable information 

in the past and who explained that, while be had made a 

thorough survey of personnel at the various museums mentioned, 

all located in Nexico City, he had not always been able to 

obtain the names and in some instances the complete names 

of individuals interviewed, because of their sensitivity to 

questions concerning their identities and insistence upon 

receiving an explanation as to the manner in which their names 

would be utilized prior to furnishing same. He explained that 

he had desisted from inquiring further concerning their full 

names when he encountered resistance in connection therewith. 

NUSEUN OF NATIONAL HISTORY 
(nusEo NACIONAL DE HISTORIA)  

Photographs of OSWALD were displayed to the follow-

ing persons at the Museum of National History located near 

the Chapultepec Castle, Chapultepec Park, without locating 

anyone who could recall his having visited the museum at any 

time; 	 / 	• 
/), , i / 	/ 7/ 	• / 

T-014 •F-IDENTIAL 

cOPIES DESTIto 
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AGUSTIN ZARATE, ticket salesman and 
collector mornings 

RAYUUND0,- ESPINOSA, ticket salesman 
and collector afternoons 

LUIS'BANDA, guide 
SALVADOR--BRAVO, guide 
JOSEBRITO, guide 
LUIS-ESTRADA, caretaker 
JESUSBLANCAS, caretaker 
LUIS'ARELLANO, caretaker 
JUAN'MARTINEZ, caretaker 
NICOLAS-JIMENEZ, caretaker 
RAMON,AVILA, caretaker 
ALBINO.TEPUJE, caretaker 
JO;IQUIN ;i‘-110011  caretaker 
ANTONIO-IdUNGUIA, caretaker 
ARTUgO-LANGLE, Assistant Director 
BERTOLDO-TORRES—ALDANA, caretaker of 

parking area 
BARTOLOME,CASTILLO, elevator operator 
Eight other individuals who have business 

concessions in the area of the museum 
and whose complete names were not obtained. 

NATIONAL t;USEU:i OF ANTHROPOLOGY AND HISTORY 

(i.IUSE0 NACIONAL DE ANTROPOLOGIA Y HISTORIA)  

The foregoing museum is located in the heart of 

Mexico City near the Government Square (Zocalo) at Calle de 

la Lioneda No. 13. Photographs of LEE HARVEY OSUALD were shown 

to the following personnel thereof without locating anyone who 

could recall his having been a visitor at that establishment: 

Mr. FLOnES, guide 
Mr. AVILA, guide 
Mr. GUZMAN, ticket seller 
Ur. HAYDES, ticket seller 
Mr.. PO:IPA, librarian 
JUAWBALTAZAR, caretaker and security 
Mr. VARELA, caretaker 
AGUSTIN'NIJARES, caretaker 
FRANCISCO - CARDENAS, caretaker 
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ROJZHERNANDEZ, caretaker 
SOFIA..GOLMZ, director of Office of 

Public Relations, sale of post cards, 

booklets,' official publications, etc, 

lost of the persons interviewed were able to 

recognize the photographs of OS;/ALD from having seen them 

in the newspapers, but they were unable to remember his ha
ving 

visited the museum. 

BEN ITO JUAREZ NUSEUN 
(MJSE0  RECINTO DE JUAREZ) 

This museum is at the National Palace (Government 

Offices). It was determined that there are few employees,
 as 

no charge is made for admission. A review of the museum r
egis-

tration book failed to develop any information identifiabl
e 

with OSUALD. The following employees were shown photographs 

of OSWiiLD and stated that they did not remember his having 

visited the museum: 

:Ir. BETANCOURT, caretaker of the 
registration book 
NUNOZ, librarian 

Lass AURITA, assistant librarian 

Nr. UANZANILLA, caretaker 
ANDRES'RO::0, caretaker 
ENRI:UE-110::.0, caretaker _-• 

THE INTERMRICAN INDIGENOUS INSTITUTE 

(INSTITUTO INDIGLNISTA INTERA:ZRICANO) 

The foregoing establishment is at Calle Ninos Heroes 

139. Photographs of OSWALD were displayed to the following 

persons connected therewith without locating anyone who co
uld 

recall him as a visitor to the Institute: 

Ur. SODI, office employee 
Zr. CANTU, office employee 
Urs. HOLEY, office employee 
Nrs. DERBES, office employee 
Nrs. AGUILAR, office employee 
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Miss OpREGON, librarian 
JULIAN RUIZ, caretaker 
FELIPE -RUIZ, policeman at entrance 
ROGELIO'CALERO, car watchman 
BALDOLIEROSTRO, car watchman 
MARCELINO.NOGUEDA, car watchman 
LINeHERNANDEZ, car watchman 
Six or seven other persons who operate 

concessions or commercial establishments 

in the vicinity of the entrance to the 

museum. 

THE ETHNOGRAPHIC MUSEUM 
(:IUSE0 ETNOGRAFICO - Ruins of an 

Aztec Temple) 

This museum is located at the corner of Guatemala 

and Seminario Streets. 

It was determined Ahat only two employees are present 

on a regular basis, IGNACIgiSENDRERO, ticket vendor on duty at 

the entrance, and EDULIO,JUAREZ, caretaker, both of whom viewed 

.photographs of OSWALD without being able to remember him as 

anyone who had visited the establishment. 

THE WAX MUSEUM 
(MUSE° DE CERA)  

The foregoing is located at Calle Argentina (no 

number) and there are only two employees on duty who function 

as ticket, vendors and caretakers. GUSTAVO,HERNANDEZ and 

CONSUELO'HERNANDEZ, after viewing photographs of OSWALD, advised 

they could not recall him as having been a visitor at the Wax 

Museum. 

NATIONAL MUSEUid OF NATURAL HISTORY 

(;;USE0 NACIONAL DE LA HISTORIA NATURAL)  

The following information was obtained by a 

confidential source abroad: 

The Museum of Natural History is located at Calle 

Dr. Enrique Gonzalez Martinez No. 10 and on April 1G, 1954, 
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;.LFONSO:::.11CILL.,G0i.IEZ advised that he is the caretaker at 
that museum, a position which he has occupied for the past 

twenty-five years. He related that few American tourists 

visit the museum and that he follows the practice of spending 

some time assisting and explaining the interesting exhibits 

of the institution to those tourists who do appear there. 

He stated that he believed he would remember most American 

visitors, and upon viewing a photograph of OSWALD, advised 
F 
	

that he could not recall him as a visitor at the museum and 

did not believe he had ever seen him at the Museum of 

Natural History. 
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Enclosed herewith to the Bureau are twelve (121 

copies of a letterhead memorandum, dated and captio
ned 

as above.0 

 

REFERENCES 

 
 

 

Bureau cable dated 4/30/64, No. 68; letter to the 

Director from the President's Commission General Co
unsel, 

J. LEE RANKIN, dated 4/24/64.V 

ADMIN ISTRAT NE- 	' 

 
  

 
 

c, 	• On the basis of a specific request from the 

President's Commission, as recorded in referenced l
ettar

P 
investigation; was conducted in Mexico City in an effort

  

to determine-whether or not any verification could 
be—obtained,i) 

with respect.  to the-allegation that LEE HARVEY OSWALD h
ad 

visited "some museums" in Mexico City.0 

SOURCES"—  

7, • The. confidential-source , abroad,*referred tO in 

the enclosure,.iethe-Legal Attachei:Mexico City'fir
e. 

105-3702, which furnished the;:ba.s-is,for inquiry. V 

The confidential source abroad who conducted 

inquiry at the National Museum of Natural History i
s SAs 

FREDERICK E. RODERICK and HENRY J. PRATIT.ti 	/, 
nl _ / 

- Bureau (Encs. 2) 
FT .:Ip ... 7.-- --AU.Q.. A 	—2. • . i fis  ) C  ' " ' ' — 
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(1 — Liaison Section) .6 ;4 —, 
(2 - Dallas, 100-104610/„'4'" 	',-1. ,,,r4 

1 - Mexico City ' 	„4/-:/)/ 1 !-.i' ' icsr:;.11.4--- i".;;;; 

(6) 	
? lie-  . 	

CC DENTIra RLL:jhk 

M G.JO 5-370 2-898 
. r 	137\  

T_ 	
0 S 	 P 	 • I, 

\\ 	 '. 2 	0q.` 

• 



MC 105-3702 

CLASSIFICATION CONF1DTIAi 
cu:AytElttlyr4  

 

 

 

The enclosed letterhead memorandum is classified 

"CONFIDENTIAL" in order to protect Bureau operations in a 

foreign country and investigative activity by Bureau 

personnel in.connection with this case le 

LEAD 

MEXICO CITY OFFICE 

At Mexico, D. F., Mexico 

Will continue to pursue and report all investigative 

leads relating to this case. kJ 
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